
Summons to Meeting

Thursday 3 August 2017

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Friday 11 August 2017, 10.00 am

Council Chamber, Allerdale House
Membership:

Councillor Janet Farebrother (Chair) Councillor Alan Pitcher (Co-Chair)
Councillor Tony Annison Councillor Bill Finlay
Councillor Malcolm Grainger Councillor Hilary Harrington
Councillor Joe Holliday Councillor Billy Miskelly
Councillor Jim Osborn Councillor Bill Pegram
Councillor Celia Tibble Councillor Martin Wood

Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting. If you have any questions 
or queries contact Ian Hinde on 01900 702544.

Agenda
1. Apologies for Absence  

2. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 6)
To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 23 June 2017.

3. Declaration of Interests  
Councillors/Staff to give notice of any disclosable pecuniary interest, other 
registrable interest or any other interest and the nature of that interest relating to 
any item on the agenda, in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct.

4. Questions  
To answer questions from members of the public – submitted in writing or by 
electronic mail no later than 5.00pm, 2 working days before the meeting.



5. Public Participation  
To hear representations from members of the public on items which appear on 
the agenda – submitted in writing or by electronic mail no later than 5.00pm, 2 
working days before the meeting.

6. West Cumbria Community Safety Partnership Annual Review  (Pages 7 - 
30)

7. Community Services Business Model - Appointment of a Task and Finish 
Group  (Pages 31 - 36)

8. Quarterly Performance - Appointment of a Task Group  (Pages 37 - 42)

9. Forward Plan  (Pages 43 - 48)

10. Work Programme and Outcomes Monitoring  (Pages 49 - 58)

Chief Executive

Date of Next Meeting:

Friday 29 September 2017, 10.00 am
Council Chamber, Allerdale House



At a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held in Council Chamber, 
Allerdale House on Friday 23 June 2017 at 10.00 am

Members

Councillor Janet Farebrother (Chair) Councillor Alan Pitcher (Co-Chair)
Councillor Tony Annison Councillor Malcolm Grainger
Councillor Hilary Harrington Councillor Billy Miskelly
Councillor Jim Osborn Councillor Celia Tibble
Councillor Martin Wood

Apologies for absence were received from  Councillor Bill Finlay, Councillor Joe 
Holliday and Councillor Bill Pegram

Staff Present

D Devine, A FitzGerald, J Hall and I Hinde

37. Minutes 

The minutes of the Community Overview and Scrutiny Committee meetings 
held on 24 March and 7 April 2017 and the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee meetings held on 24 February and 21 April 2017 were agreed as a 
correct record.

38. Declaration of Interests 

None declared.

39. Questions 

None received.

40. Public Participation 

None received.

41. LGA Overview and Scrutiny Peer Review Feedback Report and Summary 
of the Stronger Scrutiny Workshop 

The Scrutiny and Policy Officer submitted a report which sought to formally 
report to the committee the LGA’s recommendations to the Council following the 
peer review of the Overview and Scrutiny function on 29 and 30 March 2017.

The key recommendations of the report were to:

1. Continue to develop a more focused work plan more closely aligned 
to council priorities, key decisions and topics of public 
interest/importance. This would help prioritise issues where scrutiny 
could add value including more pre-decision scrutiny.

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



2. Develop a single committee structure supported by task and finish 
groups aligned to council priorities. This would help build capacity for 
more detailed pieces of work linked to Council priorities outside of formal 
committee meetings. The task and finish groups were to provide 
opportunities for any scrutiny member to chair and any member to join 
(regardless of political party).

3. Re-invigorate community engagement and communication in 
relation to the work of scrutiny. Task and finish groups focused upon 
key priorities/topics were to provide more space to do this, including 
opportunities to appoint co-optees to the task and finish groups.

4. Develop a renewed focus on the leadership of scrutiny across the 
council. This was to include the role of all members including co-optees 
and would send an important message to all stakeholders about the role 
and profile of overview and scrutiny.

5. Develop stronger links between the Executive and overview and 
scrutiny – strengthening communication and ways of working would 
allow scrutiny to better inform and shape policy and decisions.

6. Develop a rolling programme of overview and scrutiny training for 
both councillors and officers. The Council should support the 
development of skills important for good scrutiny including a mandatory 
intensive training programme for scrutiny members.

7. Review decision making templates, forward plan template and 
project planning processes to incorporate prompts in relation to the 
scrutiny function – this was to encourage all in the council to consider 
the role scrutiny could play in both pre-decision and post decision 
scrutiny.

Councillor C Tibble commented that the work of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and of other committees was not reported at meetings of Council, 
other than through annual reports from chairmen. Members agreed with the 
comments and considered that there should be a report on overview and 
scrutiny at each meeting of Council. The Acting Scrutiny Officer agreed to seek 
advice from the Head of Governance and Monitoring Officer on this.

Members noted that Council resolved at its meeting on 17 May 2017 that it 
would receive a bi-annual report updating it on progress in relation to the 
recommendations of the LGA Overview and Scrutiny Peer Review Feedback 
Report.

Agreed

That Appendix 1 and Appendix 2 be noted.

42. Work Programme 2017-18 

The Scrutiny and Policy Officer submitted a report which sought the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee to agree its work programme for 2017/18. The 

Page 2



Council’s Constitution identified that the committee had a responsibility to set an 
annual programme at the beginning of each municipal year.

Members noted the recommendations for standard agenda items for the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee set out in section 4 of the report:

 The Council’s Forward Plan
 Work Programme review and update
 Task and Finish Group/Working Group updates
 Outcomes/recommendations monitoring
 Scrutiny of the West Cumbria Community Safety Partnership (annually)

Members noted section 5 of the report which recommended a small working 
group be established by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to consider the 
following standard items:

 Quarterly Performance Monitoring Reports
 Financial Monitoring Reports

Members noted a longlist of topics proposed by Members and officers for the 
work programme, set out in Appendix 1.

Members noted the draft work programme for 2017/18 set out in Appendix 2.

Included as an appendix to the report was the Overview and Scrutiny Topic 
proposal form, which would need completed for an item to be considered by the 
committee.

Members commented that the Council’s representatives on Outside Bodies did 
not report back to the Council. It was suggested that representatives on Outside 
Bodies report back to Council annually.

Agreed

That:

1. the development of the Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme be 
noted

2. it be noted that the Work Programme Prioritisation Protocol has been 
applied throughout the work programme’s development

3. feedback from the LGA Peer Review of Overview and Scrutiny in relation 
to the work programme be noted

4. standard items at section 4 of the report be noted and agreed

5. a small separate working group be established by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee which meets quarterly to consider performance and 
budget scrutiny and reports to the main committee

Page 3



6. provision be made on the work programme for pre-scrutiny and/or urgent 
items

7. the longlist of suggested work programme topics at Appendix 1 be noted

8. the final draft work programme at Appendix 2 be agreed

9. the work programme be reviewed and updated at each meeting of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

43. Forward Plan 

The draft Forward Plan 1 July 2017 – 30 June 2018 was tabled at the meeting.

Councillor H Harrington requested further information on the item titled 
Nationally Significant Infrastructure Projects Delegated Powers. The Acting 
Scrutiny Officer agreed to provide this.

Agreed

That the draft Forward Plan 1 July 2017 – 30 June 2018 be noted.

44. Allerdale Tackling Poverty Strategy & Action Plan – Appointment of a 
Task and Finish Group 

The Senior Policy and Performance Officer submitted a report which sought the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee to agree to establish a Task and Finish 
Group to carry out a piece of pre-scrutiny work on the Council’s Tackling 
Poverty Strategy and Action Plan, to appoint a Chair to the group and to set its 
terms of reference.

Volunteers for the group’s membership were identified in section 3 of the report. 
Councillor J Farebrother requested that she be removed from the list of 
volunteers due to other commitments.

Members agreed to establish a Task and Finish Group made up of the following 
members:

 Councillor B Finlay
 Councillor M Fitzgerald
 Councillor M Grainger
 Councillor H Harrington
 Councillor B Miskelly
 Councillor P Tibble

Members agreed that Councillor B Miskelly be made Chair of the Task and 
Finish Group.

Section 4 of the report set out proposed terms of reference for the Task and 
Finish Group, which were agreed:

Page 4



 Consider and scrutinise the draft Tackling Poverty Strategy and Action 
Plan

 Identify what is currently being done by the Council and partners to 
tackle poverty in the Borough

 Make recommendations for future actions by the Council and partners to 
tackle poverty in the Borough

Members noted an appendix to the report which provided a scoping exercise 
template. The Task and Finish Group would use the template to scope its 
review, based on its terms of reference.

Agreed

That:

1. a Task and Finish Group be established by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee to consider the draft Tackling Poverty Strategy and Action 
Plan 2017-2020

2. Councillor B Miskelly be appointed Chair of the Task and Finish Group 
and be responsible for managing the group and reporting its findings to 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee

3. the membership of the Task and Finish Group be agreed as follows:

 Councillor B Finlay
 Councillor M Fitzgerald
 Councillor M Grainger
 Councillor H Harrington
 Councillor B Miskelly
 Councillor P Tibble

4. the Task and Finish Group identifies co-opted members at the scoping 
stage

5. the Task and Finish Group’s terms of reference set out in section 4.1 of 
the report be agreed

6. the Task and Finish Group follows the terms of reference and keeps the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee updated

7. the Task and Finish Group scopes the piece of work applying the 
scoping exercise template at Appendix 1

8. the Task and Finish Group reports its findings, conclusions and 
recommendations to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee

45. Task and Finish Group Update - Partnership Scrutiny of Local Housing 
Provider 

Councillor H Harrington provided an update on the Task and Finish Group – 
Partnership Scrutiny of Local Housing Provider.

Page 5



The Community Overview and Scrutiny Committee established a Task and 
Finish Group to undertake a partnership scrutiny in relation to a local housing 
provider, Your Derwent and Solway at its meeting on 24 March 2017. 

The Task and Finish Group had held a meeting to undertake the scrutiny. 
Representatives of the housing provider had been invited to attend the meeting 
but none were present. The Portfolio Holder for Housing, Health and Wellbeing 
was also not present.

Councillor H Harrington asked if another meeting could be held with all parties 
invited to attend. The Scrutiny and Policy Officer informed the councillor that the 
housing provider had stated it would not attend and members now needed to 
consider whether the scrutiny was worthwhile. 

Members noted the update.

The meeting closed at 11.35 am

Page 6



Allerdale Borough Council

Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 11 August 2017 

West Cumbria Community Safety Partnership
Annual Presentation and Review 

The Reason for the Decision
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has a 
specific remit to review the work of West Cumbria 
Community Safety Partnership (CSP) at least 
annually. 

Summary of options considered Not applicable. 

Recommendations To note the current plan of West Cumbria 
Community Safety Partnership 2017-2018;

To continue receive an annual update report, 
unless there are specific matters or concerns 
which require additional updates throughout the 
year

Financial /  Resource Implications No direct implications. 

Legal / Governance Implications No direct implications.

Community Safety Implications No direct implications. 

Health and Safety and Risk 
Management Implications

No direct implications. 

Equality Duty considered / Impact 
Assessment completed

The partnership has strong representation across 
the voluntary and community sectors.   

Wards Affected All. 

The contribution this decision would  
make to the Council’s priorities

The work of the Partnership contributes to the 
Improving Health and Wellbeing and the 
Enhancing Our Towns themes within the Council 
plan. 

Is this a Key Decision No. 

Portfolio Holder Councillor Joan Ellis

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



Lead Officer Ian Hinde
Acting Scrutiny Officer
01900 702544
ian.hinde@allerdale.gov.uk

Report Implications

Community Safety Y Employment (external to the Council) N

Financial N Employment (internal) N

Legal N Partnership Y

Social Inclusion Y Asset Management N

Equality Duty Y Health and Safety N

1.0 Introduction and background

1.1 Crime response and management is covered by a range of legislation. 
Local authorities and police services have a duty, under the Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998, to work together to develop crime and disorder audits 
and to implement crime and disorder reduction strategies, in addition to 
working in partnership with other agencies via Community Safety 
Partnerships (CSPs) to tackle any problems identified The Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998 was revised by the Police and Justice Act 2006, which 
placed duties on responsible authorities to share evidence based data to 
support Community Safety Partnerships (CSP). CSPs have a duty under 
the legislation to come together as a formal strategic group to carry out 
assessments of drug misuse, crime levels and patterns, and to produce 
community safety plans. 

1.2 This report provides members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
with background information relating to the community safety issues in 
Allerdale and the priorities of the West Cumbria Community Safety 
Partnership for 2017-2018.

1.3 The Partnership consists of representation from Cumbria Constabulary, 
Allerdale Borough Council, Copeland Borough Council, Cumbria Fire and 
Rescue, Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner (OPCC), health, 
housing associations, Age UK, Pubwatch, AWAZ, Victim Support, 
Magistrates Court and Probation Services. 

 
1.4 Allerdale Borough Council’s representative is Councillor Philip Tibble, who 

is also currently elected by the Partnership as its Chair.

1.5 The information contained herein is primarily drawn from the Cumbria 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment chapter on Staying Safe, published 
August 2016. All data unless otherwise stated is as contained in that 
document.

Page 8



2.0 The role of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

2.1 Scrutiny of the Community Safety Partnership is written in law originally 
relating to crime and disorder – The Crime and Disorder (Overview and 
Scrutiny) Regulations 2009. Further detailed legislation is contained in the 
Localism Act 2011. 

3.0       West Cumbria Community Safety Partnership Plan 2018-2018

3.1 A summary of the current plan is at Appendix 1.

4.0 Overview

4.1 Allerdale is a relatively safe place in which to live, work and visit. In many 
areas of Cumbria crime and community safety issues are better than the 
national and, or, the North West regional averages.

4.2 The local data relating to the lower super output areas in Allerdale which 
feature in the 10% most deprived in England indicates that the wards they 
are located within are also among the least safe areas in the county. 
However the overall picture is complex.   

4.3 Reported sexual offences increased in 2015-16, by +23.5% (+163) 
compared to 2014-15, and +102.1% (+433) compared to 2013-14. 
Increases were seen in all districts except Allerdale and Barrow-in-
Furness. Carlisle district had the largest percentage increase +58.9% 
(+76). Although hospital admissions for violent crime (including sexual 
violence) have decreased in 2012-13/2014-15, the rate in Barrow-in-
Furness (69.0 per 100,000) remains significantly worse than England 
(47.5).

4.4 Anti-social behaviour incidents increased in Carlisle and Allerdale in 2015-
16 compared to 2014-15 (+20.4% / +192 and +17.9% / +108 
respectively). Criminal damage offences (including arson) increased 
across the county by +5.0% (+245) compared to 2014-15.

4.5 Alcohol has a significant impact on crime and community safety being 
directly involved in 13.9% (3,626) of all crimes in 2015-16, +2.4% (+84) 
compared to 2014-15. Alcohol played a part in a large proportion of all 
violence against the person offences in 2015-16 (29.3%; 2,161).

Page 9



4.6 Alcohol misuse is having a detrimental impact on health in the Allerdale 
district. Allerdale’s female alcohol specific mortality rate in 2012-14 (16.4 
per 100,000) increased by +25.2% compared to the 2011-13 rate of 13.1 
and by +72.6% compared to the 2010-12 rate of 9.5 and was significantly 
worse than England (7.4) in 2012-14. Allerdale district’s male alcohol 
specific mortality rate also increased in 2012-14 by +47.2% to 22.5 per 
100,000, the highest percentage increase of all Cumbria’s districts.

4.7 Offending behaviour is often linked to poor physical and mental health and 
wellbeing. Mental disorder and its subsequent impact on crime is 
considered to be significant, with links established to persistent offending. 
Data regarding the proportion of offenders with mental health problems in 
Cumbria is not available and the extent of the potential problem is not fully 
understood.

5.0 Allerdale district data

5.1 There are marked geographical differences relating to the borough and 
areas within it. The notable data include: 

 Two wards with rates for all crime ranking within the highest eight 
wards: St John’s (134.4) and St Michael’s (172.2), both much higher 
than the county rate (52.2) 

 Theft from a motor vehicle offences increasing (+16.5%, +29) 
 One quarter of all wards with crime rates for theft from a motor vehicle 

higher than the county average (1.6) situated within Allerdale (13 
wards) 

 Highest crime rate for theft from a motor vehicle in Crummock ward 
(17.0 per 1,000), more than 10 times higher than the county rate 

 Second highest theft from a motor vehicle rate in Derwent Valley ward 
(9.1 per 1,000)

 Theft of a motor vehicle offences increasing (+36.4%, +16) 
 Almost a quarter (12; 23.5%) of the wards with crime rates for theft of a 

motor vehicle higher than the county average (0.6 per 1,000) situated 
in Allerdale

 St Michael’s ward has a crime rate for burglary (dwelling) (6.2 per 
1,000), the third highest of all the wards, and more than four times the 
county rate (1.5)

 Crime rate for burglary (other) is higher at 3.8 per 1,000 population 
than the county average (2.9) 

 St Michael’s ward had the highest crime rate (12.0 per 1,000) and 
number of crimes (60) for burglary (other) of all Cumbria’s wards

 Largest increase in business crime (+22.1%, +196)
 Second largest increase in youth anti-social behaviour of all the 

districts (+17.9%; +108) 

Page 10



 Largest increase in the proportion of re-offenders in 2013 who went on 
to re-offend of all the districts (+4.2 percentage points) 

 Joint highest number of re-offences per offender in 2013 (1.01 per 
offender) with Barrow-in-Furness 

 Female alcohol specific mortality rate (16.4 per 100,000 population) is 
significantly worse than the England rate (7.4). Highest of all the 
districts; increase of +25.2% in the rate compared to 2011-13 and 
+72.6% compared to 2010-12 

 Largest percentage increase in male alcohol specific mortality rate of 
all the districts (+47.2%)

 Highest rate of all fires in 2015-16 of all the districts (35.8 per 10,000); 
Flimby and St Michael’s wards had the highest and second highest rate 
respectively of all Cumbria’s wards (126 and 122 per 10,000)

 Deliberate fires increased by +19.7% (+26) in 2015-16; highest rate 
(1.6 per 1,000 population) of all the districts 

 Four communities had a dozen or more deliberate fires during 2015-16: 
two within St Michael’s ward (35 deliberate fires); one in Flimby ward 
(16); and one in Moss Bay ward (13). 

6.0 Violent crime 

6.1 Violent crime is an offence in which an offender uses or threatens force 
upon a victim. The following sections look at various aspects of violent 
crime: violence against the person; hospital admissions for violent crime 
(including sexual violence); domestic abuse; and sexual offences. Alcohol 
related violence against the person offences are covered under alcohol 
and substance misuse. 

6.2 Who is at risk, and why? 

6.2.1 In 2011-12 the Crime Survey for England and Wales established that 3 in 
every 100 adults had been a victim of violent crime of some sort in the 
preceding 12 months. The likelihood of becoming a victim of violent crime 
decreased with age, particularly for those aged 75 and over. The age 
group most at risk of violent crime is considered to be young adult males, 
aged 16-24 (Office for National Statistics, 2013). 

6.2.2 Women and girls are at risk of violence. One in six cases (16.3%) of all 
the Crown Prosecution Service caseload in 2014-15 was related to 
violence against women and girls, an increase of 3.8 percentage points 
compared to 2013-14. Of victims where age was recorded, two thirds 
(66%) were aged 25-59 years, 23% were aged 18-24 years. Victims can 
be vulnerable for a wide range of reasons, including age, drugs, alcohol, 
learning difficulties and mental health issues. Of the defendants 
prosecuted, 93% of those with recorded gender were male, 7% female. 
The majority of defendants (71%) were aged 25-59 years, although just 
over one fifth (22%) were aged 18-24 (Crown Prosecution Service, 2015). 

Page 11



6.2.3 In Cumbria, local data suggests that victims of violence against the person 
crimes are more likely to be aged 18 to 30 years, both male and female.

6.3 What local data tells us 

6.3.1 Violence against the person offences have been rising over a four year 
period, from 4,448 in 2012-13 to 7,376 in 2015-16. Recorded crimes have 
risen in all districts with the exception of Allerdale, where reported crimes 
have remained stable. 

6.3.2 Alcohol played a part in 29.3% (2,161) of violence against the person 
offences in 2015-16, a reduction of 4.4 percentage points compared to the 
previous year.

7.0 Domestic and sexual violence

7.1 Domestic violence

7.1.1 Targeting domestic abuse is a priority for Cumbria Constabulary (Cumbria 
Constabulary, 2015a). 

7.2 Who is at risk, and why? 

7.2.1 Refuge (2016) report that over a third of domestic abuse starts or gets 
worse when a woman becomes pregnant, putting both the mother and 
unborn baby at risk. Abuse can increase the risk of miscarriage, infection, 
premature birth, low birth weight, foetal injury and death. 

7.3 What does local data tell us? 

7.3.1 Recorded instances of domestic abuse have increased slightly in 2015-16 
by +1.1% (+81) compared to the previous year and by +2.8% (+195) over 
a three year period. Two districts experienced decreases in recorded 
domestic abuse crimes: Allerdale (-6.4%, -96) and Copeland (-6.9%, -86). 

7.3.2 Cumbria’s crime rate for domestic abuse in 2015-16 is 14.3 per 1,000 
population, an increase of +0.1 percentage point compared to 2014-15. 
Four districts have rates higher than that of the county including Allerdale 
(14.6). 

7.3.3 Proportionally, repeat victims accounted for 38.8% of all domestic abuse 
incidents in 2015-16, a decrease of -0.3 percentage points compared to 
2014-15. At least a third of domestic abuse victims in all districts were 
repeat victims in 2015-16.

Page 12



7.3.4 During 2015-16, there were 435 referrals to access Cumbria’s 
Independent Domestic Violence Advisory (IDVA) services through ‘Let 
Go’, an increase of +4.1% (+17). Of these:
 304 (69.9%) were new referrals, clients who have not previously 

accessed the service.
 The majority were female (94.7%, 412).
 The majority of clients (80.0%, 348) were aged between 21 and 50 

years old.
 The age group with the largest proportion of referrals (32.2%, 140) is 

that of those aged 21 to 30 years.
 Referred clients were mainly White British or Irish (94.0%, 409). 

7.3.5 In two thirds of referrals in 2015-16 there were children in the household. 
In total, 
 572 children were present, an average of 2.1 per household. 
 The majority of children (65.2%, 373) were aged from 0 to 11 years; 
 22 clients (5.1%) were pregnant (Let Go, 2016). 

7.3.6 In economic terms, 
 54.7% (238) of referred clients were not in paid employment, and
 43.0% (187) had an annual household income of less than £15,599.
 One third (36.6%, 159) either had, or foresaw having financial 

problems, an increase of +5.0 percentage points compared to 2014-15 
(Let Go, 2016). 

7.3.7 Mental health issues were common and suffered by 40.2% (175) of 
clients, 68% (119) of whom have accessed a specialist service. Around 
one in eight (11.7%, 51) have either planned or attempted suicide, 11.5% 
(50) have self-harmed, 5.1% (22) have misused drugs and 9.0% (39) 
have misused alcohol. Disability affects 15.6% (68) of clients (Let Go, 
2016). 

7.3.8 In the three months prior to intake, physical abuse was experienced by 
55.9% (243) of clients; 19.3% (84) experienced sexual abuse; 64.8% 
(282) experienced harassment and stalking; and 75.6% (329) experienced 
jealous and controlling behaviours (Let Go, 2016). 

7.3.9 There are serious socio-economic issues surrounding the perpetrators: 
39.5% (172) have misused drugs; 40.2% (175) have misused alcohol; 
41.6% (181) had mental health issues; 22.3% (97) had financial problems; 
and 41.8% (182) had a criminal record related to domestic violence. The 
majority of perpetrators were male (94.5%, 411); females made up 5.5% 
(24) of the total in 2015-16 (Let Go, 2016).

7.4 Sexual violence

7.4.1 Quantifying the true prevalence of sexual offences is difficult. There are 
difficulties in obtaining reliable information on the extent of sexual 
offences as these incidents are under reported. Police forces and other 

Page 13



agencies have worked towards improving their response to the victims of 
sexual violence, however, figures on sexual offences are largely 
influenced by the willingness of victims to come forward (NHS Cumbria 
CCG, 2013). 

7.4.2 Reported sexual offences have continued an increasing trend within 
Cumbria as they have nationally. The increase is considered to be due to 
a combination of improvements in recording by the police and an increase 
in the willingness of victims to come forward and report to the police 
(Office for National Statistics, 2015b). 

7.5 Who is at risk, and why? 

7.5.1 The number of people accessing support services demonstrates a high 
demand and need for support. Cumbria’s Bridgeway Sexual Assault 
Service became fully operational in December 2015, and has confirmed 
the need for clinical, therapeutic and support services. By the financial 
year end 2015-16 over 200 people had been supported by the 
Independent Sexual Violence Advisor (ISVA) service, with the number 
accessing forensic examination (which includes immediate sexual health 
care) higher than expected. Approximately half the cases were under 16 
years old. A number of self-referrals have come forward who have then 
been supported to report to the police. This indicates a demand and need 
for non-police routes to services (Office of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner, 2016). 

7.5.2 Sexual violence and harassment of young people is not uncommon. A 
survey commissioned by the Commons’ Women and Equalities 
Committee indicates that around a quarter (27%) of young adults aged 16 
to 25 years had felt pressured into “sexting” and sexual activity. Survey 
results have been captured within the report, Sexual Harassment and 
Violence in Schools (Fixers, 2016). Within the report, young people report 
that they had felt under enormous pressure to have sex and behave in a 
sexualised way from around the age of 12 years, and sometimes younger. 

7.5.3 Bullying and blackmail, both in the digital and physical world, are potential 
consequences when sexual images are broadcast to unintended 
recipients, a situation which can potentially result in young people 
dropping out of school and having suicidal thoughts. Pressure facing 
young adults is intense. Some girls report being “bullied for being a virgin”, 
or branded as “frigid” by their peers; others describe a “lad culture” where 
boys are awarded “lad points” for having sex (Fixers, 2016). 

7.5.4 Young people aged under 16 years are more likely to be the victim of 
sexual offences. Victims aged over 16 are more likely to be female (Office 
of the Police and Crime Commissioner, 2016). Evidence suggests that 
one in five women aged between 16 and 59 have experienced some form 
of sexual violence since the aged of 16 (Safety Net, 2015).

Page 14



7.6 What local data tells us 

7.6.1 Cumbria Constabulary sexual offences data for 12 months to March 2015 
suggest that just under half of all sexual offences (46%) had an adult 
victim over the age of 16, and that 17% (50) of reported offences were 
historic. Over a three year period 83% (247) of victims aged 16 and over 
were female. During the period April 2014 to March 2015 19% (56) of 298 
sexual offences with victims aged over 16 were committed by a stranger, 
42% (125) of victims knew the offender and 71 (24%) were marked as the 
relationship between the victim and offender being partner, ex-partner or 
family (Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner, 2016). 

7.6.2 In 2015-16, reported sexual offences totalled 857, around 3.3% of all 
crime in this period. Reported sexual offences increased by +23.5% 
(+163) compared to 2014-15, and by +102.1% (+433) compared to 2013-
14. The increase in Cumbria’s sexual offences in 2015-16 compared to 
the previous year was less than the national increase (England and 
Wales), at +29% (Office for National Statistics, 2015b). 

7.6.3 The rise in 2015-16 is mirrored across all districts with the exception of 
Allerdale and Barrow-in-Furness, where no significant change has been 
seen.

7.7 Evidence of what works 

7.7.1 A partnership of public, private, charitable and voluntary agencies has 
been working to improve prevention and support to victims of sexual 
offences. It has identified that the needs of victims could be met through a 
number of measures: 
 Continuing to keep a high profile for sexual assault and providing 

supportive options for people to come forward to obtain help; 
 Providing a range of support for the physical and sexual health needs, 

emotional or therapeutic needs and practical difficulties of victims; 
 Joining-up services so that people obtain all the services they need and 

experience a service that is as seamless as possible; 
 Providing awareness raising and challenging beliefs (particularly views 

on consent) to reduce sexual offending and help people be more 
resilient (not implying in any way that they are to blame for becoming a 
victim) alongside preventative work with people showing sexually 
harmful behaviour; 

 Increasing the confidence of professionals and acceptance of 
responsibility for identifying sexual abuse or risk factors, including child 
sexual exploitation (Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner, 
2016). 

7.7.2 In December 2015 a countywide service under the umbrella of The 
Bridgeway became fully operational. The Bridgeway provides ISVA 
services from age 5 (previously different services were offered in different 
parts of the county and limited support for under 16s), some therapeutic 
services, forensic-medical care, a 24/7 helpline and a single point of 

Page 15



access to support services for sexual assault / abuse victim across 
Cumbria. A new specialist centre in Penrith means that victims of sexual 
offences no longer have to travel to Preston to have a forensic-medical 
examination. Therapeutic services in the county have also expanded over 
recent years so that there are specialist services available across the 
county for adults affected by sexual abuse as well as children (Office of 
the Police and Crime Commissioner, 2016). 

7.7.3 The National Society for the Protection of Cruelty to Children (NSPCC) 
provides a range of support programmes for children who have been 
victims of child sexual exploitation, sexual abuse, are displaying sexually 
harmful behaviour and those children where abuse is suspected but has 
not been disclosed. Safety Net (North, East and West Cumbria) and 
Birchall Trust (South Cumbria) provide specialist therapeutic services for 
children and adults who have been victims of sexual abuse, including 
working as part of the Bridgeway service. Victim Support (as well as 
providing the ISVA service for The Bridgeway) also supports victims of 
sexual offences through specially trained volunteers for the offences and 
levels of risk which are less high, complementing the service provided by 
the ISVAs. The Brathay Trust is running a relatively new programme with 
young people identified as being at risk of child sexual exploitation. There 
is additional support from Freedom Project and Let Go specialist services 
for people affected by domestic abuse, where sexual abuse is quite often 
a factor (Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner, 2016).

8.0 Anti-social behaviour

8.1 Reported anti-social behaviour incidents continue to fall across the 
county. Throughout 2015-16 a total of 13,803 anti-social behaviour 
offences were reported, a decrease of -31.7% (-6,405) compared to 2014-
15 and -42.2% (-10,071) compared to 2013-14. This trend is mirrored 
across all the districts. 

8.2 Youth anti-social behaviour 

8.2.1 The picture for youth anti-social behaviour is slightly different. During 
2015-16, youth anti-social behaviour incidents increased very slightly by 
+1.6% (+61) compared to 2014-15, giving a crime rate of 7.7 per 1,000 
population compared to 7.6 in 2014-15. Reported youth anti-social 
behaviour crimes had been decreasing previously. The largest increase 
during 2015-16 was seen in Carlisle at +20.4% (+192); Allerdale also saw 
a large increase of +17.9% (+108). 

9.0 Reducing re-offending

9.1 The concept of a "dangerous offender" was introduced by the Criminal 
Justice Act 2003. Since April 2005, the Act has allowed indefinite 

Page 16



imprisonment sentences to be applied in the interest of public protection 
and extended imprisonment sentences to be applied in relation to 
dangerous sexual offenders and violent offenders. 

9.2 An estimated 15% of the incidents dealt with by the police in the UK have 
a mental health concern. There is difficulty around defining offenders with 
a mental disorder (whether they are offenders with a mental health 
disorder, or people whose mental health disorder has led them to commit 
a crime) and therefore whether they should be dealt with by the police or 
by mental health services (Community-safety.info, 2015). 

9.3 Whilst the 1983 Mental Health Act focused on strengthening the rights of 
patients to seek independent reviews of their treatment, the Mental Health 
Act 2007 made some key changes. The main focus is now on public 
protection and risk management, and the Act has introduced compulsory 
community treatment orders. Police officers have the power to remove 
anyone from a public place who is considered to be mentally disordered 
and requiring immediate care of control. People have to be moved to a 
place of safety, such as a hospital or care home, although police stations 
can be used as a last resort. Under Section 136, people can be held for 
up to 72 hours, and during this time they should be assessed by a doctor 
and an Approved Mental Health Professional (AMHP). 

9.4 Who is at risk, and why? 

9.4.1 Offending behaviour is often linked to physical and mental health and 
wellbeing. Mental disorder and its subsequent impact on crime is 
considered to be significant, with links established to persistent offending 
(Community-safety.info, 2015). A large proportion of families with multiple 
needs are managed through the criminal justice system, with needs often 
across the generations. Offenders often experience significant health 
inequalities. It is understood that re-offending has an impact that is wider 
than the individual, but affects additionally offenders’ children, families and 
the wider communities of which they are part. It is estimated that Cumbria 
Constabulary are dealing with an average of 30 to 40 mental health cases 
each day (Cumbria Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner, 2016).

9.4.2 In 2014-15, there were a total of 4,855 people registered with a mental 
health condition (schizophrenia, bipolar affective disorder and other 
psychoses) on GP Registers across Cumbria CCG, a registration rate of 
0.94%; this is above the England average of 0.88%. Levels of deprivation 
are a key determinant of mental health disorders. People living in more 
deprived areas are likely to have higher levels of mental health conditions 
and higher needs for services. 

9.4.3 Probation services were divided in 2014 into a public sector National 
Probation Service and 21 new Community Rehabilitation Companies 
(CRCs) operated by primarily private providers. The National Probation 
Service has responsibility for monitoring and managing all high risk of 
harm offenders and those convicted of sexual offences. Within Cumbria, 

Page 17



the Cumbria and Lancashire Community Rehabilitation Company 
(CLCRC) manages all offenders not managed by the National Probation 
Service. The aim of the CLCRC is to protect the public by delivering 
effective offender management and rehabilitation services to low and 
medium risk offenders who are serving community sentences or have 
been released from prison on licence.

9.5 Offending - What local data tells us 

9.5.1 CLCRC operate teams covering Barrow-in-Furness, Carlisle and 
Workington / Kendal. A further team manages low risk offenders from a 
central hub. Information provided by CLCRC at mid-June 2016 indicates 
there are 1,458 offenders currently residing in Cumbria. The majority of 
these (83.7%) are male, 16.3% female. Just over half of all offenders 
(53.8%, 784) have been assessed as low risk or re-offending or causing 
harm, with 45.5% (664) assessed as medium risk. One offender was 
assessed high risk. In total, 73 offenders are on the active child protection 
register, an increase of +10.6% (+7) compared to mid-August 2015, and 
219 offenders are on the domestic violence perpetrator register, an 
increase of +36.9% (+59) (CLCRC, 2016). 

9.5.2 Robbery and violence account for 32.0% of offences committed by 
offenders managed by CLCRC, theft (non-motor) makes up 11.0%, drug 
possession and / or supply account for 10.7%, whilst public order offences 
make up 10.5% (CLCRC, 2016). 

9.5.3 As of June 2016, the National Probation Service in Cumbria was 
managing 765 offenders. The majority of the caseload were male (95%, 
728), the remainder female (5%, 37). Over half (57%, 433) were assessed 
as being of medium risk, 40% (306) were high risk, and 1% (11) were 
assessed as very high risk. Over half are in custody (53%, 405) and the 
remainder serving sentences in the community (47%, 360). The majority 
of the caseload is made up of violent offenders (41%, 335), and this will 
include domestic violence offences. Almost one fifth (19%, 153) have 
been convicted of sexual offences against children and 11% (91) of 
sexual offences against adults (National Probation Service, 2016). 

9.5.4 Risks posed by the most serious sexual and violent offenders are 
managed under Multi-Agency Public Protection Arrangements (MAPPA), 
which brings the police, probation and prison services together as a 
MAPPA Responsible Authority, working with other local agencies. At the 
end of March 2015, there were 608 MAPPA-eligible offenders in Cumbria, 
an increase of +10.1% (+56) compared to March 2014. Registered sex 
offenders accounted for 72.0% (438) of the total, an increase of +14.4% 
(+55) compared to the previous year. Violent offenders made up 27.8% 
totalling 169 offenders, numbers similar to the previous year (MAPPA, 
2015). At mid-June 2016, the National Probation Service were managing 
681 MAPPA-eligible offenders in Cumbria, 89% of the total caseload 
(National Probation Service, 2016). 

Page 18



9.5.6 Across a range of 8,377 crimes committed in 2015-16 the majority 
(78.0%) were committed by males, with almost a third (32.1%) committed 
by males aged between 18 and 30 years. Seven wards with the highest 
numbers of crimes committed by males aged 18 to 30 years are situated 
in four districts: 

Allerdale: St John’s (114); St Michael’s (85) 
Barrow-in-Furness: Hindpool (176); Central (104) 
Carlisle: Castle (306); Currock (101) 
Copeland: Harbour (119) 
(Cumbria Constabulary, 2016a). 

9.5.7 The majority of offenders of alcohol related violent crimes (with and 
without injury) in 2015-16 were male (77.6%), with 40.4% of offences 
committed by males aged 18 to 30 years.

9.6 Re-offending - What local data tells us 

9.6.1 Ministry of Justice proven re-offending statistics for 2013 indicate that 
29.1% of offenders in Cumbria went on to re-offend. This represents an 
increase of +1.7 percentage points compared to the previous year, and is 
a higher proportion than that of the North West (28.0%) and England 
(26.4%). Differences were seen across Cumbria’s districts. Three districts 
had proportions higher than the Cumbria average: Allerdale (31.3%); 
Barrow-in-Furness (31.8%); Carlisle (31.1%). (Public Health England, 
2013). 

9.6.2 All districts saw increases in the proportion of re-offenders with the 
exception of Copeland, where the proportion decreased by -0.5 
percentage points to 27.8%. Barrow-in-Furness had the largest proportion 
of offenders who went on to re-offend of all the districts, and Allerdale had 
the largest increase in percentage points (+4.2).  (Public Health England, 
2013). 

9.6.3 In 2013 re-offences increased across the county by +12.7% to 0.89 re-
offences per offender (from 0.79 in 2012) and were higher than England 
(0.82) although comparable to the North West region (0.88). Three 
districts had rates higher than the Cumbria average: Allerdale (1.01), 
Barrow-in-Furness (1.01), and Carlisle (0.99). Allerdale had the highest 
percentage increase (+34.7%), with a rate higher than England and the 
North West, having previously been lower than the North West. 

10.0 Alcohol and substance misuse

10.1 Issues around drug and alcohol misuse, who is at risk, and evidence of 
what works are covered in detail within the JSNA Healthy Living and 
Lifestyles Chapter published in October 2015 and available via the 
Cumbria Observatory website. The following includes information that has 
become available since the original chapter was published. 

Page 19



10.2 Substance misuse 

10.2.1 During 2015-16 there were 2,923 service users in contact with Unity Drug 
and Alcohol Services Cumbria (Unity), the county’s provider of statutory 
services to adults (aged 18+) with alcohol and drug problems. This 
represents a decrease of -6.3% in drug and alcohol referrals (-195 service 
users) compared to 2014-15 and a decrease of -9.8% (-317 users) 
compared to 2013-14.  

10.2.2 Drug misuse clients reduced overall by -2.8% (-50) within Cumbria in 
2015-16. Variations occurred across the districts. There was no significant 
change in Allerdale (Unity, 2016).

 
10.2.3 Allerdale, had higher proportions of service users with drug related 

problems than the county average (59.8%) at 65.6% (338 service users). 
(Unity, 2016).

10.2.4 Heroin was the most commonly used drug among Unity service users 
across all districts, comprising 44.5% of all clients (1,300).  Allerdale had a 
high proportion of service users with heroin as their main drug (49.9% / 
257) (Unity, 2016).

10.2.5 Two thirds (66.1%; 1,931) of all Unity service users in Cumbria during 
2015-16 were male, 33.9% (992) female, a picture that is similar across 
the county’s districts. The majority (66.0%; 1,930) of all users were aged 
between 30 to 49 years old with almost one fifth (19.1%; 557) aged 
between 35 to 39 years old. Allerdale had a larger proportion of service 
users aged 35-39 than the county average (21.0%, 108) (Unity, 2016).

10.2.6 The main use of the service is for: 
 drugs related issues (59.8%; 1,749); 
 40.2% (1,174) use the service for alcohol related problems. 
 Opiate drugs account for half (50.7%; 1,482) of all service users, with 
 heroin the most commonly used drug (44.5% / 1,300 of all service 

users in the county) (Unity, 2016).

10.2.7 Across the county, one fifth of service users (583, 19.9%) had children 
living with them in 2015-16. (Unity, 2016).

10.3 Drug possession and supply 

10.3.1 Although illegal drug use has fallen over the last decade in England and 
Wales, the social costs of drug supply remain significant. Communities 
are affected through related violence, anti-social behaviour and acquisitive 
crime, as organised criminals protect their interests and users fund drug 
use. Targeting drug supply, particularly Class A drugs, is a priority for 
Cumbria Constabulary (Cumbria Constabulary, 2015a). 

Page 20



10.4 Who is at risk, and why? 

10.4.1 Local data tells us that those trafficking in drugs are more likely to be 
male, aged between 18 to 40 years. 

10.5 What local data tells us 

10.5.1 Recorded drug crimes (trafficking and possession) have continued to 
decrease in the county in 2015-16. During the year, 1,070 crimes were 
recorded, a decrease of -22.4% (-308) compared to 2014-15 and -30.0% 
(-459) compared to 2013-14. The largest percentage decrease was seen 
in Allerdale, -39.6% (-120).  The crime rate for Cumbria has decreased to 
2.1 per 1,000 population compared to 2.8 in 2014-15. 

10.5.2 Recorded drug possession and supply offences varied across the 
county’s wards in 2015-16. Almost one quarter (24.7%) of the county’s 
wards had drug possession and supply crime rates higher than the county 
rate. (Cumbria Constabulary, 2016a). 

10.5.6 Recorded drug offences are heavily dependent on police activity and may 
therefore be much higher than currently stated (Cumbria Constabulary, 
2015a). The high number of offences in Askham ward are most likely to 
be a result of the annual music festival, ‘Kendal Calling’, held annually in 
the ward and the associated policing opportunities to detect offences at 
the event.

10.5.7 Those trafficking drugs are more likely to be male, aged between 18 and 
30 years. In 2015-16 a total of 91 (44.2%) offenders fell into this category. 
Males aged 31 to 40 made up a further 27.2% (56).  Five wards with the 
highest number of those trafficking drugs are: 

Allerdale: Broughton St Bridget’s (9) 
Barrow: Hindpool (8); Central (8) 
Carlisle: Botcherby (14); Currock (10) 
(Cumbria Constabulary, 2016a). 

10.6 Alcohol related crime 

10.6.1 During 2015-16 alcohol was involved in 13.9% (3,626) of all crimes. All 
alcohol related crimes across the county increased by +2.4% (+84) 
compared to 2014-15. Allerdale saw a decrease of -6.4% (-38). 

10.6.2 Variations in alcohol related crime occurred across Cumbria’s wards. In 
total, 37 wards, 22.3% of all wards in the county, had crime rates for 
alcohol related crime higher than that of the county (7.3 per 1,000). 

10.7 Victims of all crime 

10.7.1 Cumbria Constabulary data for 18,627 victims of a range of crimes in 
2015-16 indicate that males and females aged between 18 and 30 were 
the group most at risk of being a victim of crime (26.8%, 4,996 people). 

Page 21



Ten wards had more than 100 victims of crime, both male and female, 
aged between 18 and 30 years, listed below: 

Allerdale: St John’s (132); St Michael’s (122) 
Barrow-in-Furness: Hindpool (292); Central (188) 
Carlisle: Castle (433); Currock (176); Belle Vue (133); St Aidan’s (108); 
Denton Holme (105) 
Copeland: Harbour (163) 
(Cumbria Constabulary, 2016) 

10.8 Alcohol related violent crime 

10.8.1 Although alcohol related crime and disorder has a widespread impact 
across all parts of policing in Cumbria, the majority is violence related. 
Tackling alcohol related violent crime remains a priority for Cumbria 
Constabulary (Cumbria Constabulary, 2015a). 

10.9 Who is at risk, and why? 

10.9.1 Victims of alcohol related violent crime in Cumbria are more likely to be 
aged between 18 and 40 years, both male and female (Cumbria 
Constabulary, 2016a). 

10.10 What local data tells us 

10.10.1 During 2015-16 there were 2,161 alcohol related violence against the 
person offences. This represents almost one third (29.3%) of all the 
violence against the person offences, a reduction of -4.4 percentage 
points compared to 2014-15. Overall, alcohol related offences have fallen 
slightly across the county by -2.3% (-52) during 2015-16, the first 
reduction to be seen since 2012-13.

10.10.2 Proportions of alcohol related violent crime victims in Cumbria during 
2015-16 were fairly evenly split between males (46.0%) and females 
(44.2%). For both male and female, people aged 18 to 40 were the groups 
most at risk. Males aged 18-30 made up 30.7% of all victims, and females 
aged 18-40 constituted 30.0%. Six wards in Cumbria had 50 or more 
victims of alcohol related violent crime in 2015-16 aged between 18-40 
years. These were situated in the following districts: 

Allerdale: St John’s ward (60) 
Barrow-in-Furness: Hindpool (139); Central (60) 
Carlisle: Castle (170); Currock (50) 
Copeland: Harbour (100) 
(Cumbria Constabulary, 2016a). 

10.11 Alcohol related sexual offences 

10.11.1 In 2015-16 over one in six 14.8% (127) of all recorded sexual offences 
were alcohol related, representing a county rate of 0.3 per 1,000 

Page 22



population compared to 1.7 per 1,000 for all sexual offences, and 14.8 per 
1,000 for all violence against the person offences.

11.0 Cyber crime

11.1 Advances in technology including the internet, social media, smart phones 
and tablets have played a large part in reshaping criminal activity. As well 
as offenders using technology to plan and coordinate traditional crimes, a 
new range of crimes are emerging that are being committed solely in 
cyberspace (Cumbria Constabulary, 2015a).. 

11.2 A national cybercrime definition, published by the National Policing Lead 
for Cybercrime in 2014, defines cybercrime into three types:

 Cyber Dependent Crimes - where a digital system is the target as 
well as the means of attack (eg attacks on computer systems to 
disrupt IT infrastructure, and stealing data over a network using 
malware)

 Cyber Enabled Crimes – ‘existing’ crimes that have been 
transformed in scale or form by their use of the Internet.

 The use of the Internet to facilitate drug dealing, people smuggling 
and many other 'traditional' crime types (Cumbria Constabulary, 
2015). 

11.3 What local data tells us 

11.3.1 From August 2014 to July 2015, cybercrimes in Cumbria recorded by 
Action Fraud increased by +20% (+15) compared to the same period in 
the previous year, and the number of cybercrime victims increased by 
+37% (+421). The number of NFIB disseminations to Cumbria 
Constabulary for investigation more than doubled (+111%, +52). It is 
difficult to determine whether this increase is an actual increase in 
cybercrime, or whether it is the result of increased awareness, and 
improved reporting and recording processes (Cumbria Constabulary, 
2015a). 

11.3.2 Since April 2015, Cumbria Constabulary have been carrying out research 
to establish reported cybercrime types. Data available for April to June 
2015 suggests an average of 23 offences each month, over half (57%) 
related to harassment offences. Almost all the harassment offences 
involved social media use, mainly Facebook or Twitter, and most related 
to harassment between ex-partners (Cumbria Constabulary, 2015a).

11.3.3 Bullying on social media is becoming increasingly common, and can take 
a variety of forms including: 
 Sending threatening or abuse text messages, embarrassing images or 

videos 
 ‘Trolling’, the practice of sending menacing or upsetting message on 

social networks

Page 23



 Setting up hate sites or groups about a particular person
 Encouraging people to self-harm
 Voting for or against someone in an abusive poll
 Sending explicit message, also known as sexting
 Pressuring children into sending sexual images or engaging in sexual 

conversations (House of Commons Library, 2016). 

11.3.4 Indications are that cyberbullying is increasing. The NSPCC report that in 
2015-16 cyberbullying was mentioned in 4,541 Childline counselling 
sessions, an increase of +13% compared to 2014-15. Sexting was also 
mentioned in 1,392 counselling sessions, an increase of +15% compared 
to the previous year. Much of the bullying is sexist, racist or homophobic 
in nature. Cyberbullying can have a detrimental effect on the mental and 
physical wellbeing of victims (House of Commons Library, 2016b). 

11.3.5 Farmers are the most recent target for cyber criminals. Criminals are 
aware that farmers receive considerable annual payments under the EU 
Common Agricultural Policy, and attempt to gain fraudulent access to 
bank accounts (Cumbria Constabulary, 2015). 

11.4 Evidence of what works 

11.4.1 Cumbria Constabulary has been developing a cybercrime training process 
over the last 12 months that has improved understanding and will 
contribute towards better recording and investigation of cybercrime 
(Cumbria Constabulary, 2015a).

12.0 Child sex exploitation

12.0.1 Targeting child sexual exploitation (CSE) is national priority and has a 
high media profile. It is also a priority for Cumbria Constabulary (Cumbria 
Constabulary, 2015a). 

12.1 Who is at risk, and why? 

12.1.1 Children missing from home form the majority of vulnerable missing 
persons; this group is considered to be often the group most at risk of 
abuse and CSE whilst missing from home. The most common group for 
victims of grooming is 13 to 14 year old girls (Cumbria Constabulary, 
2015a). 

12.2 What local data tells us 

12.2.1 The overall picture of CSE within Cumbria is identified as single victim / 
single offender type offending; little is associated with groups or gangs 
(Cumbria Constabulary, 2015a). 

Page 24



12.2.2 During 2015-16, reported crimes with a CSE marker totalled 349, an 
increase of +47.9% (+113) compared to 2014-15 (Cumbria Constabulary, 
2016a). 

12.2.3 It is acknowledged that the ‘selfie’ and ‘sexting’ culture is increasing the 
risks faced by children and young people. Children and young people are 
more easily exposed to pornography with increased use and availability of 
the internet. This exposure may affect their judgement of what is 
acceptable and normal behaviour, increasing risk of making them 
vulnerable to abuse and exploitation (Cumbria Constabulary, 2015a). 

12.2.4 Sexual grooming offences have remained fairly low across Cumbria, 
totalling 13 in 2015-16, an increase of +8.3% (+1) compared to 2014-15. 

12.3 Evidence of what works 

12.3.1 Increases in crimes with a CSE marker are considered by Cumbria 
Constabulary to be a result of increased awareness of CSE as a result of 
awareness raising initiatives. One initiative used in Cumbria is the 
theatrical production, Chelsea’s Choice, a play designed to educate young 
people aged 12+ about the serious and emotional issue of CSE, raising 
awareness of the issues and the devastating impact that sexual 
exploitation has on a young person’s life. The play has been performed to 
around 14,000 young people in schools over the last two years (Cumbria 
Constabulary, 2016c).

12.3.2 A further initiative is being trialled in the county. The project ‘Tackling CSE 
in Cumbria’ works in partnership with the Office of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner, Cumbria Constabulary, Brathay Trust and Local 
Safeguarding Children Board and is a programme for young people who 
are being, or are at risk of being, sexually exploited. The programme will 
be delivered by Brathay Trust over two years and aims to create an on-
going project that reduces sexual exploitation and achieves sustainable 
change and has a wider impact on service delivery. The Commissioner 
has agreed to provide £82,500 over two years to support the delivery of 
the programme (Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner, 2015).

13.0 Trafficking

13.1 ‘Trafficking of persons’ refers to the recruitment, transportation, transfer, 
harbouring or receipt of persons, by means of the threat or use of force or 
other forms of coercion, of abduction, of fraud, of deception, of the abuse 
of power or of a position of vulnerability or of the giving or receiving of 
payments or benefits to achieve the consent of a person having control 
over another person, for the purpose of exploitation. Exploitation shall 
include, at a minimum, the exploitation of the prostitution of others or other 
forms of sexual exploitation, forced labour or services, slavery or practices 
similar to slavery, servitude or the removal of organs.

Page 25



13.2 Trafficked victims are coerced or deceived by the person arranging their 
relocation. On arrival in the country of destination the trafficked child or 
person is denied their human rights and is forced into exploitation by the 
trafficker or person into whose control they are delivered.

13.3 Children and young people are usually recruited by coercive or subversive 
means, taken on dangerous journeys with false papers and ID and, at 
their destination, they are kept in a controlled environment by means of 
threats or violence. Some children may be escorted by a person stating 
that they are a relative. Most children are trafficked for financial gain such 
as domestic servitude, sexual exploitation, benefit fraud, sweat-shop work 
in catering or agriculture, illegal adoption and many more.

13.4 Child trafficking is child abuse.  Children are recruited, moved or 
transported and then exploited, forced to work or sold.  They are often 
subject to multiple forms of exploitation.  It is also not just about trafficking 
adults and children across national borders, human trafficking can take 
place anywhere.

13.5 Children are trafficked for;
 child sexual exploitation
 benefit fraud
 forced marriage
 domestic servitude such as cleaning, childcare, cooking
 forced labour in factories or agriculture
 criminal activity such as pickpocketing, begging, transporting drugs, 

working on cannabis farms, selling pirated DVDs and bag theft

13.6 Many children are trafficked into the UK from abroad, but children can 
also be trafficked from one part of the UK to another.

13.7 Modern slavery involves children who are recruited, moved or transported 
and then exploited and forced to work or sold.  The Modern Slavery Act 
2015 provides legal protection and support to victims and covers two 
offences - i) human trafficking and ii) forced labour and servitude.

13.8 Children do not have to prove that they have been coerced or persuaded 
in order to be a victim of modern slavery, i.e. a child's consent to being 
trafficked is irrelevant and it is not necessary to prove coercion or any 
other inducement for there to be an offence.  This includes their 
engagement in criminal activity. Public authorities have a duty under the 
Act to notify the Home Office when they come across potential victims of 
modern slavery and people trafficking.

13.9      The child at the point of entry:
 Entered illegally without passport or ID papers;
 Has false papers, goods and money not accounted for;
 Has no adult with them or to meet them;
 Is with an adult who refuses to leave them alone;
 Has no money but a working mobile phone;

Page 26



 Is reluctant to give personal details.

13.10 Once in the UK the child:
 Receives unexplained calls
 Has money from an unknown source;
 Shows signs of sexual or physical abuse;
 Has not been enrolled in a school or with a GP;
 Seems to do work in various locations.

13.11 The child’s sponsor:
 Has previously made multiple visa applications for other children or 

acted as guarantor; or
 Is known to have acted as guarantor for others who have not returned 

to their countries of origin at the expiry of the visas.

13.12 Identification of trafficked children may be difficult as they might not show 
obvious signs of distress or abuse. Some children are unaware that they 
have been trafficked, while others may actively participate in hiding that 
they have been trafficked. Any child transported for exploitative reasons is 
considered to be a trafficking victim in line with the Palermo Protocol, 
whether or not they have been forced or deceived. This is partly because it 
is not considered possible for children to give informed consent. Even when 
a child understands what has happened, they may still appear to submit 
willingly to what they believe to be the will of their parents or accompanying 
adults. It is important that these children are protected too.

 
14.0 Recommendations

14.1 To note the current plan of West Cumbria Community Safety Partnership 
2017-2018;

14.2 To continue receive an annual update report, unless there are specific 
matters or concerns which require additional updates throughout the year

15.0 Conclusion

15.1 In conclusion the West Cumbria Safety Partnership has a robust 
membership and plan which reflects what the data indicates are the local 
concerns.

15.2 Council will continue to receive an annual report from West Cumbria 
Community Safety Partnership which will report progress made. 

Ian Hinde
Acting Scrutiny Officer

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28



West Cumbria Community Safety Partnership 2017-2018

TACKLING PRIORITIES 2017-2018
Violent Crime – This will be managed through the Problem Solving Group, 
Pubwatch and statutory partners.
Alcohol & Substance Misuse – This will be managed through multi agency 
partnerships such as Cumbria Constabulary, licensees, Pubwatch and will 
include a focus on New Psychoactive Substances.
Domestic & Sexual Violence – Actively support the countywide work being 
undertaken on domestic and sexual violence.
Reducing Re-offending - To maintain the Integrated Offender Management 
program and encourage the use of restorative justice.
Anti-social Behaviour – To work with partners to reduce ASB, delivering 
positive projects to reduce offending and make use of current legislation.

VISION
By working in Partnership, 

Allerdale and Copeland 
communities will remain 

safe and reassured without 
the fear or threat of crimeViolent 

Crime

Anti-social 
Behaviour

Alcohol & 
Substance

Misuse

Domestic 
& Sexual 
Violence

Reducing 
Re-off ending

MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIR
As Chair of the West Cumbria Community 
Safety Partnership I am pleased to present 
our Plan outlining our priorities for the 
coming year. West Cumbria is a great 
place to live, work and visit and overall 
it is a safe place. It is the responsibility of 
the Partnership to identify any areas of 
concern in relation to Crime and Disorder. 

We will continue to support the Pub Watch 
scheme and Taxi Marshalls to address 
problems in the night time economy and 
fund projects which provide constructive 
activities for young people. Cyber Crime 
is an increasing area of worry and we 
are planning training to help all age 
groups avoid problems when using new 
technology. 

I would like to thank all the Partners 
in the West CSP and other Cumbrian 
Partnerships for their on going 
commitment to making the area safe for 
it’s residents.

Cllr Phil Tibble 
West Cumbria CSP Chair

While continuing to tackle our  
priorities the following areas have  
been highlighted as current and will  
be prioritised in 2017 -18

 Cyber Crime

 Child Sex Exploitation

 Trafficking

To view the full strategic assessment on 
which this plan is based please go to:

www.cumbriaobservatory.org.uk

KEY PRIORITIES 
2017-2018

WEST CUMBRIA  
CSP MEMBERS

 Cumbria Constabulary 

 Allerdale Borough Council

 Copeland Borough Council

 Cumbria Fire and rescue

 Office of the Police & Crime 
 Commissioner ( OPCC )

 Health

 Housing Associations

 Age UK

 Pubwatch

 Awaz

 Victim Support

 Magistrates court and 
 probation services

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 30



Allerdale Borough Council

Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 11 August 2017 

Allerdale Borough Council Community Services Business Model – 
Appointment of a Task and Finish Group 

The Reason for the Decision The report seeks agreement from the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee to establish a 
Community Services Business Model Task and 
Finish Group, appoint a Chair and set the terms 
of reference. 

Summary of options considered Options considered include:

The Committee establishes a Task and Finish 
Group to scrutinise the process of awarding the 
Council’s contract for services: waste and 
recycling, street cleansing and grounds 
maintenance services. This is the recommended 
option;

Address the work in the main Committee. 
However it is considered that the topic requires a 
regular review with a level of detail and time 
commitment not possible to achieve in a 
Committee Meeting.

Recommendations 1. That a Task and Finish Group is established 
by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to 
consider the process of letting the Community 
Services Business Model contract;

2. That the Committee appoint a Chairperson (a 
current Member of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee) who will be responsible for 
managing the Task and Finish Group and 
reporting its findings to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee; 

3. That the Committee agrees the membership 
of the Task and Finish Group;

4. That the Committee agrees that the Task and 
Finish Group identifies any potential members 
to be coopted at the scoping stage;

Page 31

Agenda Item 7



5. That the Committee agrees the Task and 
Finish Group’s proposed Terms of Reference 
at 4.1;

6. That the Task and Finish Group follows the 
agreed Terms of Reference and keeps the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee updated; 

7. That the Task and Finish Group scopes the 
piece of work applying the scoping exercise 
template;

8. That the Task and Finish Group reports its 
findings, conclusions and recommendations 
to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

Financial /  Resource Implications The Task and Finish Group will require Members 
and Officer support and resources. 

Legal / Governance Implications The Task and Finish Group will be required to 
report its work, findings and any 
recommendations it makes to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee for approval. 

Community Safety Implications There are no direct implications. 

Health and Safety and Risk 
Management Implications

There are no direct implications.

Equality Duty considered / Impact 
Assessment completed

This will be considered at scoping stage. 

Wards Affected All

The contribution this decision would 
make to the Council’s priorities

The Task and Finish Group will contribute to the 
Creating A Sustainable Business theme of the 
Council Plan. 

Is this a Key Decision No

Portfolio Holder Councillor Michael Heaslip 

Lead Scrutiny Member Councillor Janet Farebrother (Current Chair) 

Lead Officer Ian Hinde
Acting Scrutiny Officer
01900 702544
ian.hinde@allerdale.gov.uk 

Page 32



Report Implications

Community Safety N Employment (external to the Council) Y

Financial Y Employment (internal) N

Legal N Partnership Y

Social Inclusion N Asset Management N

Equality Duty N Health and Safety N

Background papers: 
Report submitted to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny, 21 April 2017
Minutes of Corporate Overview and Scrutiny, 21 April 2017
Minutes of Executive, 10 May 2017
Task and Finish Group Protocol

1.0 Introduction

1.1 The Council’s current contracts for waste and recycling, street cleansing and 
grounds maintenance services, are due to end on 31 March 2019. 

1.2 Work is now being undertaken to develop the specification and let a new 
contract following the options appraisal process earlier this year.

1.3 This report seeks agreement from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to 
establish a Community Services Business Model Task and Finish Group, set 
the terms of reference to carry out this work and appoint a Chair. The Group 
will provide feedback on the process to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 
to enable the Committee to make any appropriate recommendations to the 
Project Board and, or, Executive. 

2.0 Background to the Community Services Business Model

2.1 At the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 21 April 2017, the 
Head of Community Services submitted a report to provide members with the 
results of the service delivery model option appraisal exercise for the 
procurement of performance based services including waste and recycling, 
street cleansing and grounds maintenance services, all of which would 
commence on 01 April 2019. The Interim Waste and Recycling Officer 
provided members with a presentation setting out the key criteria for the most 
appropriate service delivery model, being implementation and supply chain, 
flexibility and synergy, control and responsiveness, risk partition, commercial 
opportunity and affordability target savings of £1m from 2019/20 on £5.986m.

Page 33



2.2 A commissioning approach had been adopted for the identification and 
selection of potential service delivery model, including:

 
Option 1 – Contractor (outsourced)
Option 2 – Direct delivery (in-house)
Option 3 – LA trading company (service)
Option 4 – LA trading company (commercial)
Option 5 – Shared service (public-public)
Option 6 – Shared service (public-private)

2.3 At the Executive meeting on 10 May 2017, it was agreed that:
 

1. the report and results of the service delivery model option appraisal 
exercise be approved

 
2. the procurement of performance based services (Option 1 – Contractor) 

for waste and recycling collection, recycling processing, street cleansing 
and grounds maintenance services, all of which would commence on 1 
April 2019, be approved

2.4 The Council is currently developing its commissioning process for these 
services. Since the approval of the report, further work has been completed or 
commenced including: 

Stakeholder consultation: a stakeholder consultation exercise to inform the 
development and selection of proposed service 
interventions, which inform the development of the 
service specification.

Appraisal of Interventions: an option appraisal exercise to rank each proposed 
service intervention using a range of evaluation 
criteria that are weighted according to their relative 
importance.

OJEU listing: in late July the Council will place an OJEU 
notification (Official Journal of the European Union) 
inviting potential bidders for the contract to register 
their interest before late August 2017 (exact dates 
still to be confirmed at the time of writing).

Commissioning

3.0 Task and Finish Group Membership 

3.1 Following the meeting of the Community Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
on 23 June 2017, an email was sent to the Committee Members and all non-
Executive Members seeking expressions of interest in participating in a Task 
and Finish Group. 

Page 34



The following Committee Members have indicated they are interested in this 
group: 

 Cllr M Grainger
 Cllr H Harrington

From the wider membership the following Councillors are volunteering to join 
this Group:

 Cllr P Bales
 Cllr M Fitzgerald
 Cllr A Markley
 Cllr R Munby
 Cllr P Tibble

3.2 The Committee is asked to agree the Task and Finish Group Membership and 
appoint a Chair. 

3.3 The Committee is asked to agree that the Task and Finish Group considers 
whether to co-opt any further participants at the scoping stage.

3.4 Any changes in Task Group membership howsoever caused will be agreed by 
the Committee at its first available meeting.

4. Terms of Reference

4.1 The Committee is responsible for setting Terms of Reference for the Task and 
Finish Group. Terms of Reference are used to guide and focus the Task and 
Finish Group and support the delivery of priorities. The following Terms of 
Reference are proposed:

 Consider and scrutinise the processes involved in awarding the new 
contract

 Identify what is currently being done by the Council to ensure the 
needs of all residents are considered in the new contract arrangements

 Identify what is currently being done by the Council to ensure the new 
contract will deliver the expected level of service and deliver the 
anticipated savings

 Make recommendations for improvements to the process 

4.2 Members are asked to consider the proposed Terms of Reference and 
whether any further should be added before agreeing them.

4.3 Members are asked to note that the Task and Finish Group will scope the 
work based on the Terms of Reference using scoping template.

Page 35



5.0 Recommendations

5.1 It is recommended that:

5.1.1 That a Task and Finish Group is established by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee to consider the Community Services Business 
Model contracting process;

5.1.2 That the Committee appoint a Chairperson (a current Member of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee) who will be responsible for managing 
the Task and Finish Group and reporting its findings back to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee; 

5.1.3 That the Committee agrees the membership of the Task and Finish 
Group

5.1.4 The Committee agrees that the Task and Finish Group identifies co-
opted Members at the scoping stage;

5.1.5 That the Committee agrees the Task and Finish Group’s Terms of 
Reference at 4.1; 

5.1.6 That the Task and Finish Group follows the Terms of Reference and 
keeps the Overview and Scrutiny Committee updated; 

5.1.7  That the Task and Finish Group scopes the work applying the scoping 
exercise template;

5.1.8  That the Task and Finish Group reports its findings, conclusions and 
recommendations to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

6.0 Conclusion

6.1 Members are advised that a Task and Finish Group is the most appropriate 
way to address this pre-decision scrutiny work. The Task and Finish Group 
setting will allow Members to manage the review and allocate the level of 
detail needed to deliver timely feedback, recommendations and outcomes for 
the Council and local people. 

Ian Hinde
Acting Scrutiny Officer 

Page 36



Allerdale Borough Council

Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 11 August 2017 

Allerdale Borough Council Quarterly Performance – 
Appointment of a Performance Task Group 

The Reason for the Decision The report seeks agreement from the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee to establish a Task 
Group to monitor the Council’s quarterly 
performance and financial reports, appoint a 
Chair and set the terms of reference. 

Summary of options considered Options considered include:

The Committee establishing a Task Group to 
carry out scrutiny of performance against key 
Council Plan themes as reflected in the quarterly 
performance reports and scrutiny of the quarterly 
financial reports. This is the recommended option;

Addressing the above work in the main 
Committee. It is considered that the topic requires 
a level of detail and time commitment not possible 
to achieve in a Committee Meeting.

Recommendations 1. That a Task Group is established by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee to consider 
the quarterly performance and quarterly 
finance reports;

2. That the Committee appoints a Chairperson 
(a current Member of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee) who will be responsible 
for managing the Task Group and reporting 
its findings to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee; 

3. That the Committee agrees the membership 
of the Task Group;

4. That the Committee agrees that the Task 
Group will identify additional co-opted 
members at the scoping stage;

5. That the Committee agrees the Task Group’s 
proposed Terms of Reference at 4.1;

Page 37

Agenda Item 8



6. That the Task Group follows the agreed 
Terms of Reference and keeps the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee updated; 

7. That the Task Group scopes the piece of 
work applying the scoping exercise template;

8. That the Task Group reports its findings, 
conclusions and recommendations to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

Financial /  Resource Implications The Task Group will require Member and Officer 
resources. 

Legal / Governance Implications The Task Group will be required to report its 
work, findings and any recommendations it 
makes to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
for approval. 

Community Safety Implications There are no direct implications. 

Health and Safety and Risk 
Management Implications

There are no direct implications.

Equality Duty considered / Impact 
Assessment completed

This will be considered at scoping stage. 

Wards Affected All

The contribution this decision would 
make to the Council’s priorities

The Task Group will contribute to all Council Plan 
priorities and in particular to the Creating A 
Sustainable Business theme. 

Is this a Key Decision No

Portfolio Holder Councillor Alan Smith - Performance
Councillor Barbara Cannon - Finance

Lead Scrutiny Member Councillor Alan Pitcher (Joint Chair) 

Lead Officer Ian Hinde
Acting Scrutiny Officer
01900 702544
ian.hinde@allerdale.gov.uk 

Page 38



Report Implications

Community Safety N Employment (external to the Council) N

Financial N Employment (internal) N

Legal N Partnership N

Social Inclusion N Asset Management N

Equality Duty N Health and Safety N

Background papers: 1. Task and Finish Group Protocol
2. Minutes of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee – 23 April 2017
3. Reports for the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 23 

June 2017

1.0 Introduction

1.1 The Council produces a quarterly performance report which covers each area 
of the Council Plan. The Council also produces a quarterly finance report, 
identifying spend under each Executive Member’s Portfolio area.

1.2 As part of its work, an Overview and Scrutiny Committee should review or 
scrutinise decisions made, or other action taken, in connection with the 
discharge of any functions which are the responsibility of the Executive. This 
applies to these reports.

1.3 Members have agreed that a Task Group is established to carry out this work 
and provide feedback to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, for any 
recommendations to then be made to Executive. 

2.0 Background 

2.1 At Council on 17 May 2017, it was agreed Task and Finish Groups would be 
established as part of the future Scrutiny arrangements. This is one of those 
groups, here referred to as a Task Group as the proposal is to have this group 
continue as a standing Task Group albeit with an annual review of 
membership.

2.2 At the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 23 June 2017 Members were 
asked to consider the Work Programme which included the creation of an 
ongoing group as has been supported by Overview and Scrutiny members in 
previous years and it was also suggested by the LGA Peer Review Team in 
its feedback report. See the Work Plan report, agenda item 7, 23 June 2017.

Page 39



3.0 Task and Finish Group Membership 

3.1 The following Members have indicated they are interested in participating for 
the next twelve months: 

 Cllr A Pitcher (first six months)*
 Cllr J Farebrother (second six months)

*The Joint Chairs of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee have agreed that 
whoever is not currently chairing the Committee will join this Task Group. 

From the wider membership the following Councillors are volunteering to join 
this Group:

 Cllr M Fitzgerald
 Cllr A Markley
 Cllr P Tibble
 Cllr D Wilson

3.2 The Committee is asked to agree the Task Group Membership and appoint a 
Chair. 

3.3 The Committee is asked to delegate to the Task Group co-option of any 
additional Members at the scoping stage.

3.4 Any changes in Task Group membership howsoever caused will be agreed by 
the Committee at its first available meeting.

4. Terms of Reference

4.1 The Committee is responsible for setting Terms of Reference for the Task 
Group. Terms of Reference are used to guide and focus the Task Group and 
support the delivery of priorities. The following Terms of Reference are 
proposed:

 Consider and scrutinise the quarterly corporate performance reports 
(Council Plan delivery Key Performance Indicators - KPIs)

 Consider and scrutinise the quarterly finance reports
 Question any under-performance or significant variances and highlight 

any concerns
 Note all completed work and highlight / commend strong performance
 Make recommendations for any improvements to the process 

4.2 Members are asked to consider the proposed Terms of Reference and 
whether any further should be added before agreeing them.

4.3 Members are asked to note that the Task Group will scope the remit based on 
the terms of reference using scoping template.

Page 40



5.0 Recommendations

5.1 It is recommended that:

5.1.1 That a Task Group is established by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee to consider the quarterly performance and quarterly finance 
reports;

5.1.2 That the Committee appoints a Chairperson (a current Member of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee) who will be responsible for managing 
the Task Group and reporting its findings back to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee; 

5.1.3 That the Committee agrees the membership of the Task Group

5.1.4 The Committee agrees that the Task Group identifies additional Members 
to be co-opted at the scoping stage;

5.1.5 That the Committee agrees the Task Group’s Terms of Reference at 4.1; 

5.1.6 That the Task Group follows the Terms of Reference and keeps the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee updated; 

5.1.7  That the Task Group scopes the piece of work applying the scoping 
exercise template;

5.1.8 That the Task Group reports its findings, conclusions and 
recommendations to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

6.0 Conclusion

6.1 Members are advised that a Task Group is the most appropriate way to 
address this scrutiny work. The Task Group setting will allow Members to 
manage the level of detail needed to deliver timely feedback, 
recommendations and contribute to the outcomes for the Council and local 
people. 

Ian Hinde
Acting Scrutiny Officer 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42



Allerdale Borough Council – Executive Reports and Key Decisions

1 August 2017 to 31 July 2018

Key Decision Date decision to 
be made and 
decision maker

Open/
Exempt

Portfolio Holder Officer contact 
details

Initial 
recommendations

Annual 
Governance 
Statement

Audit Committee

21 August 2017

Open Executive Member: 
Leader of the 
Council (Councillor 
Alan Smith)

Brendan Carlin, 
Head of 
Governance and 
Monitoring Officer

brendan.carlin@alle
rdale.gov.uk

That the Annual 
Governance 
Statement be 
approved

Statement of 
Accounts

To present 
members with the 
Statement of 
Accounts for 
consideration and 
approval

Audit Committee

21 August 2017

Open

N/A

Executive Member: 
Corporate 
Resources (Finance 
and Property) 
(Councillor Barbara 
Cannon)

Catherine 
Nicholson, Head of 
Financial Services

catherine.nicholson
@allerdale.gov.uk

That the Statement 
of Accounts be 
approved

Treasury 
Management 
Operation Annual 
Report

To inform members 
of the performance 
of the Council’s 
treasury 

Audit Committee

21 August 2017

Council

20 September 2017

Open Executive Member: 
Corporate 
Resources (Finance 
and Property) 
(Councillor Barbara 
Cannon)

Catherine 
Nicholson, Head of 
Financial Services

catherine.nicholson
@allerdale.gov.uk

That the report be 
noted

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 9



management 
activities for the 
year
Public Spaces 
Protection Order - 
Murray Road, 
Workington

To seek approval to 
make a gated 
Public Spaces 
Protection Order in 
relation to anti-
social behaviour, 
pursuant to powers 
contained in 
sections 59-65 of 
the Anti-Social 
Behaviour, Crime 
and Policing Act 
2014

Executive

6 September 2017

Open Councillor Mark 
Fryer, Councillor 
Joan Ellis

Jill Morgan, Legal 
Executive

jill.morgan@allerdal
e.gov.uk

That the Executive 
approve the making 
of a Public Spaces 
Protection Order to 
the rear of Murray 
Road.

That the Council 
monitor and review 
the impact of the 
measures contained 
in the Public 
Spaces Protection 
Order over the next 
12 months, and in 
accordance with the 
legislation, conduct 
a formal review 
within three years of 
the date of the 
Order being made.

Cloud based Suite 
of Systems

Replacement of 
existing ICT 
systems currently 
operated within 
Development 

Executive

6 September 2017

Part exempt Executive Member: 
Transformation 
(Councillor Konrad 
Hansen)

Jennifer Jackson, 
Technical Officer

jennifer.jackson@all
erdale.gov.uk

Executive approval 
of the successful 
supplier following 
evaluation of 
Written Proposals 
and Presentations.

P
age 44



Services, Health & 
Housing, Land 
Charges and 
Licensing
Quarterly Finance 
Report (Q1)

To inform members 
of the Council’s 
financial 
performance 
against budget, 
along with the 
forecast position to 
the end of the 
financial year

Executive

6 September 2017

Open

N/A

Executive Member: 
Corporate 
Resources (Finance 
and Property) 
(Councillor Barbara 
Cannon)

Catherine 
Nicholson, Head of 
Financial Services

catherine.nicholson
@allerdale.gov.uk

That members note 
the report

Q1 Performance 
Report 2017/18

A report detailing 
performance 
against the 
Corporate Business 
Plan 2017/18 at the 
end of Quarter 1 
2017/18

Executive

6 September 2017

Open Executive Member: 
Leader of the 
Council (Councillor 
Alan Smith)

Alex FitzGerald, 
Senior Policy and 
Improvement 
Officer

alex.fitzgerald@alle
rdale.gov.uk

That Members note 
the information 
contained within the 
report and take 
action to improve 
performance where 
necessary.

Q2 Performance 
Report 2017/18

A report detailing 
performance 
against the 

Executive

24 January 2018

Open Executive Member: 
Leader of the 
Council (Councillor 
Alan Smith)

Alex FitzGerald, 
Senior Policy and 
Improvement 
Officer

alex.fitzgerald@alle

That Members note 
the information 
contained within the 
report and take 
action to improve 
performance where 

P
age 45



Corporate Business 
Plan 2017/18 at the 
end of Quarter 2 
2017/18

rdale.gov.uk necessary.

Q3 Performance 
Report 2017/18

A report detailing 
performance 
against the 
Corporate Business 
Plan 2017/18 at the 
end of Quarter 3 
2017/18

Executive

21 March 2018

Open Executive Member: 
Leader of the 
Council (Councillor 
Alan Smith)

Alex FitzGerald, 
Senior Policy and 
Improvement 
Officer

alex.fitzgerald@alle
rdale.gov.uk

That Members note 
the information 
contained within the 
report and take 
action to improve 
performance where 
necessary.

Q4 Performance 
report 2017/18

A report detailing 
performance 
against the 
Corporate Business 
Plan 2017/18 at the 
end of Quarter 4 
2017/18

Executive

13 June 2018

Open Executive Member: 
Leader of the 
Council (Councillor 
Alan Smith)

Alex FitzGerald, 
Senior Policy and 
Improvement 
Officer

alex.fitzgerald@alle
rdale.gov.uk

That Members note 
the information 
contained within the 
report and take 
action to improve 
performance where 
necessary.

Meetings of the Council, Executive and Scrutiny Committees are open to the public (except when exempt (confidential) items are 
being considered).  It is advisable to check the agenda before attending a meeting, as decision dates may be subject to change.  
Agendas and supporting documents for meetings of the Executive can be found on the Council’s website www.allerdale.gov.uk or 
at Allerdale House, Workington, Cumbria, CA14 3YJ

Further information is available by calling 01900 702502

P
age 46

http://www.allerdale.gov.uk/


Any representations as to why a meeting should be open to the public should be made in writing to Democratic Services at the 
above address.

A list of the Executive members can be found at http://democracy.allerdale.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=11

P
age 47

http://democracy.allerdale.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=11


T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 48



Last updated: 3/8/17

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2017-18 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Meetings

Meeting 
Date 

Items Council Plan 
Theme/Theme 

Further 
Information 

Lead Officer Lead Portfolio 
Holder  

Lead 
Scrutiny 
Member 

Scrutiny of the West 
Cumbria Community 
Safety Partnership

Statutory Question and 
answer session on 
the work of the 
West Cumbria 
Community Safety 
Partnership. To be 
attended by Cllr P 
Tibble (Chair) and 
Lisa Elder 
(Partnership Co-
ordinator)

Legal and Licensing 
Manager 

Executive Member 
for Governance and 
Legal Resources 

Chair and Co-
Chair of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

11 August 
2017 

Forward Plan Governance Standing Item Head of 
Governance 

Leader of the Council Chair and Co-
Chair of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee

P
age 49

A
genda Item

 10



Last updated: 3/8/17

Meeting 
Date 

Items Council Plan 
Theme/Theme 

Further 
Information 

Lead Officer Lead Portfolio 
Holder  

Lead 
Scrutiny 
Member 

Work Programme 
Update 

Governance Standing Item Scrutiny Officer N/A Chair and Co-
Chair of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Waste, recycling, street 
cleansing and grounds 
maintenance contract 
Task and Finish Group 

Creating a 
Sustainable 
Business 

Enhancing our 
Towns 

Improving Health 
and Wellbeing 

A report seeking 
the Committee’s 
agreement to set 
up a Task and Finish 
Group to consider 
the work to let a 
new contract for 
Waste, recycling, 
street cleansing and 
grounds 
maintenance 
services, appoint a 
Chair of the Task 
and Finish Group 
and agree Terms of 
Reference. 

Head of Community 
Services 

Executive Member 
for Locality and 
Environmental 
Quality 

Chair and Co-
Chair of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

P
age 50



Last updated: 3/8/17

Meeting 
Date 

Items Council Plan 
Theme/Theme 

Further 
Information 

Lead Officer Lead Portfolio 
Holder  

Lead 
Scrutiny 
Member 

Performance Task and 
Finish Group

All A report seeking 
the Committee’s 
agreement of 
membership and 
Chair and agree 
Terms of Reference. 
(principle of setting 
up the TFG agreed 
at Committee on 
23/6/17) 

Scrutiny Officer Chair and Co-
Chair of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Task and Finish Group 
Update Reports 

Governance To receive progress 
reports from any 
Task and Finish 
Groups 

Scrutiny Officer Chair of the 
Task and Finish 
Group

Forward Plan Governance Standing Item Head of 
Governance 

Leader of the Council 

29 
September 
2017 

Scrutiny of delivery of 
the Housing Strategy 

Strengthening our 
economy 

Tackling Inequality 

Improving Health 
and Wellbeing 

Questions and 
answers to Portfolio 
Holder and Officers 
on delivery of 
themes outlined in 
the Housing 
Strategy.

Head of Housing 
and Health 

Executive Member 
for Housing, Health 
and Wellbeing 

Chair and Co-
Chair of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee

P
age 51



Last updated: 3/8/17

Meeting 
Date 

Items Council Plan 
Theme/Theme 

Further 
Information 

Lead Officer Lead Portfolio 
Holder  

Lead 
Scrutiny 
Member 

Work Programme 
Update

Governance Standing Item Scrutiny Officer Chair and Deputy 
Chair of Overview 
and Scrutiny 
Committee  

Chair and Co-
Chair of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Task and Finish Group 
Update Reports 

Governance 
To receive progress 
reports from any 
Task and Finish 
Groups 

Scrutiny Officer 
Chair of the 
Task and Finish 
Group 

Forward Plan Governance Standing Item Head of 
Governance  

Leader of the Council 
Chair and Co-
Chair of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee

3 November 
2017 

Budget Development 
2018-19

Creating a 
sustainable 
business 

To overview and 
scrutinise the 
budget setting 
process for 2018-19

Head of Financial 
Services 

Executive Member 
for Corporate 
Resources 

Chair and Co-
Chair of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee

P
age 52



Last updated: 3/8/17

Meeting 
Date 

Items Council Plan 
Theme/Theme 

Further 
Information 

Lead Officer Lead Portfolio 
Holder  

Lead 
Scrutiny 
Member 

Scrutiny of delivery of 
the Growth Strategy 

Strengthening our 
economy 

Tackling Inequality 

Enhancing our 
towns 

Creating a 
sustainable 
business 

Questions and 
answers to Portfolio 
Holder and Officers 
on delivery of 
themes outlined in 
the Growth 
Strategy and how 
the Council can 
support 
manufacturing and 
tourism in the 
context of Brexit

Head of Economic 
Growth

Deputy Leader with 
Economic Growth 
portfolio 

Chair and Co-
Chair of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Work Programme 
Update 

Governance Standing Item Scrutiny Officer Chair and Co-
Chair of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Task and Finish Group 
Updates 

Governance To receive progress 
reports from any 
Task and Finish 
Groups

Scrutiny Officer Chair of the 
Task and Finish 
Group

Forward Plan Governance Standing Item Head of 
Governance 

Leader of the Council Chair and Co-
Chair of the 

P
age 53



Last updated: 3/8/17

Meeting 
Date 

Items Council Plan 
Theme/Theme 

Further 
Information 

Lead Officer Lead Portfolio 
Holder  

Lead 
Scrutiny 
Member 

Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee  

Scrutiny of delivery of 
the Customer Access 
Strategy 

Creating a 
sustainable 
business 

Questions and 
answers to the 
Portfolio Holder 
and Officers on 
delivery of themes 
outlined in the 
Growth Strategy

Head of Customer 
and Commissioning, 
OD ＆ 
Transformation 
Head of Customer 
and Commissioning, 
OD & 
Transformation

Executive Member 
for Transformation 

Chair and Co-
Chair of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee  

15 
December 
2017

Work Programme 
Update

Governance Standing Item Head of 
Governance

Chair and Co-
Chair of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee  

26 January 
2018

Forward Plan Governance Standing  Item Head of 
Governance 

Leader of the Council 
Chair and Co-
Chair of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee  

P
age 54



Last updated: 3/8/17

Meeting 
Date 

Items Council Plan 
Theme/Theme 

Further 
Information 

Lead Officer Lead Portfolio 
Holder  

Lead 
Scrutiny 
Member 

Budget Development 
2018-19

Creating a 
sustainable 
business 

To overview and 
scrutinise the 
budget setting 
process for 2018-19 

Head of Financial 
Services 

Executive Member 
for Corporate 
Resources 

Chair and Co-
Chair of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Work Programme 
Update 

Governance Standing Item Scrutiny Officer 
Chair and Co-
Chair of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Task and Finish Group 
Updates 

Governance 
To receive progress 
reports from any 
Task and Finish 
Group 

Scrutiny and Policy 
Officer 

Chair of the 
Task and Finish 
Group

9 March 
2018

Forward Plan Governance Standing Item Head of 
Governance

Leader of the Council 

P
age 55



Last updated: 3/8/17

Meeting 
Date 

Items Council Plan 
Theme/Theme 

Further 
Information 

Lead Officer Lead Portfolio 
Holder  

Lead 
Scrutiny 
Member 

Grounds Maintenance 
Contract Scrutiny – Final 
Report (and conclusion 
of Task and Finish 
Group) 

Creating a 
sustainable 
business

Enhancing our 
Towns 

Improving Health 
and Wellbeing

Pre-Scrutiny of final 
proposals before 
Executive decision

Head of Community 
Services

Executive Member 
for Locality and 
Environmental 
Quality

Budget 2018-19 Creating a 
sustainable 
business 

To overview and 
scrutinise the 
budget setting 
process for 2018-19

Head of Financial 
Services 

Executive Member 
for Corporate 
Resources 

Chair and Co-
Chair of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Work Programme 
Update 

Governance Standing Item Scrutiny and Policy 
Officer

Chair and Co-
Chair of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Task and Finish Group  
Updates 

Governance To receive progress 
reports from any 
Task and Finish 
Group

Scrutiny and Policy 
Officer 

Chair of the 
Task and Finish 
Group

P
age 56



Last updated: 3/8/17

Meeting 
Date 

Items Council Plan 
Theme/Theme 

Further 
Information 

Lead Officer Lead Portfolio 
Holder  

Lead 
Scrutiny 
Member 

Forward Plan Governance Standing Item Head of 
Governance 

Leader of the Council 

Work Programme 
Updates 

Governance Standing Item Scrutiny and Policy 
Officer 

Chair and Co-
Chair of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee

20 April 
2018 

Task and Finish Group 
Updates 

Governance To receive progress 
reports from any 
Task and Finish 
Group

Scrutiny and Policy 
Officer 

Chair of the 
Task and Finish 
Group

Task and Finish Group/Reviews 

Topic Further Information Estimated Start date

1 Tackling Poverty Terms of reference proposed for agreement June 2017

P
age 57



Last updated: 3/8/17

at OSC on 30 June 17. 
2 Grounds Maintenance Contract Scrutiny of new contract August 2017

3 European Social Fund (ESF) 
Scrutiny of how the ESF contracts are being 
delivered in Allerdale and Cumbria and 
identify any barriers to delivery. 

January 2018

4 Enforcement Policy Review 
Review of the Council’s Corporate 
Enforcement Policy and its application across 
Council services 

To be confirmed 

Topic Proposals/Additions in year 

Proposed Topic Proposer Date received Reason for Work Programme request 

P
age 58


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 West Cumbria Community Safety Partnership Annual Review
	Appendix 1

	7 Community Services Business Model - Appointment of a Task and Finish Group
	8 Quarterly Performance - Appointment of a Task Group
	9 Forward Plan
	10 Work Programme and Outcomes Monitoring

